



University of Wisconsin
Whitewater

Academic Staff Assembly

UW-WHITWATER ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER I: ACADEMIC STAFF ASSEMBLY

ARTICLE I - NAME

ARTICLE II- PURPOSE

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 - Academic Staff Assembly Members

Section 2 - Limit Upon Number of Academic Staff Assembly Members

Section 3 - Term of Office

Section 4 - Consecutive Terms

Section 5 - Academic Staff with Split Appointments

ARTICLE IV - ELECTIONS

Section 1 - Eligibility for Election to the Academic Staff Assembly

Section 2 - Time of Elections

Section 3 - Election Questions or Disputes

ARTICLE V - VOTING

Section 1 - Eligibility to Vote in Elections and/or Referendums

Section 2 - Voting Process

Section 3 - Filling of Vacancies

ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS

Section 1 - Election of Officers

Section 2 - Terms and Duties of the Chair

Section 3 - Terms and Duties of the Vice Chair

Section 4 - Terms and Duties of the Past Chair

Section 5 - Terms and Duties of the Communications Director

Section 6 - Terms and Duties of the Faculty Senate Liaison

Section 7 - Removal from Office

ARTICLE VII - ASSEMBLY MEMBER DUTIES

Section 1 - General Duties

Section 2 - Absences

Section 3 - Recall of an Assembly Member

ARTICLE VIII - MEETINGS

Section 1 - Regular Meetings

Section 2 - Special Meetings

Section 3 - Open Meetings

Section 4 - Agenda/Minutes

ARTICLE IX - OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES

CHAPTER II: GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

ARTICLE I - STANDING COMMITTEES

ARTICLE II - FUNCTION, MEMBERSHIP & TERMS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Section 1 - Awards Committee

Section 2 - Economic Issues Committee

Section 3 - Elections and Balloting Committee

Section 4 - Government Relations Committee

Section 5 - Outreach Committee

Section 6 - Professional Development Committee

Section 7 - Promotions Committee

Section 8 - Rewards and Recognition Committee

Section 9 - Review Committee

Section 10 - Title Appeals Committee

Section 11 - Titling Committee

ARTICLE III - AD HOC COMMITTEES

ARTICLE IV - COMMITTEE REPORTS

CHAPTER III: BY-LAW REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS
CHAPTER I: ACADEMIC STAFF ASSEMBLY

ARTICLE I - NAME

This organization of academic staff shall be known as the Academic Staff Assembly of the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater.

ARTICLE II- PURPOSE

The Academic Staff Assembly shall represent and be responsible to the general academic staff in governance matters and serve as the campus forum for the articulation of academic staff views concerning university, administrative, fiscal, and academic staff matters. The Academic Staff Assembly, comprised of instructional and non-instructional staff, shall represent the academic staff of the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater to the Board of Regents, the University of Wisconsin System administration, the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater administration, the Faculty Senate, and the Student Association of the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 - Academic Staff Assembly Members

The Academic Staff Assembly shall have a total of sixteen (16) elected members. One member is elected as Vice Chair of the assembly. Of the fifteen (15) remaining members, at least six (6) will be instructional academic staff and six (6) will be non-instructional academic staff. There can be no more than seven (7) members from either the instructional academic staff or the non-instructional academic staff.

Constituency	Members
Division of Academic Affairs	2
Division of Student Affairs	2
College of Arts & Communication	1
College of Business & Economics	1
College of Education & Professional Studies	1
College of Integrated Studies	1
College of Letters & Sciences	1
School of Graduate Studies	1
At-Large	6
	16

UW-WHITWATER ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

Section 2 - Limit Upon Number of Academic Staff Assembly Members

There shall be no more than two (2) representatives to the Academic Staff Assembly from any one (1) operational unit.

Section 3 - Term of Office

Each member of the Academic Staff Assembly shall be elected to a two-year (2) term of office.

Section 4 - Consecutive Terms

An academic staff member may serve an unlimited number of consecutive terms. A term is defined as twenty-four (24) months beginning with the first Academic Staff Assembly meeting in May following elections. A person/appointed to fill a vacant term may be a candidate in the next scheduled election.

Section 5 - Academic Staff with Split Appointments

An academic staff member holding an appointment in two or more designated areas may only be a candidate for election in the area of the higher percentage. If the academic staff member holds a fifty (50) percent appointment in two areas, the Elections and Balloting Committee, in consultation with the candidate, shall authorize the specific area for elected representation. Once an individual academic staff member with a split appointment has been designated to a specific area by the Elections Committee, that designation may not be changed unless the appointment of the individual is revised.

ARTICLE IV - ELECTIONS

To be a candidate for election to the Academic Staff Assembly, an eligible academic staff member must indicate candidacy to the Elections and Balloting Committee.

Section 1 - Eligibility for Election to the Academic Staff Assembly

To be eligible for election to the Academic Staff Assembly an academic staff member must hold at least a half-time academic staff appointment for the entire academic year. An individual academic staff member may be a candidate for election to one seat only in any given election.

Section 2 - Time of Elections

Elections for all open seats of the Academic Staff Assembly shall be held according to the procedures and guidelines set forth by the Election and Balloting Committee.

- A. The nomination period for all open seats on the Academic Staff Assembly must be at least seven (7) days.
- B. The voting period for all open seats on the Academic Staff Assembly must be at least ten (10) days.
- C. Election results must be presented to the assembly at least three (3) weeks prior to the organizational meeting.
- D. Days will be defined as "calendar" days.

Section 3 - Election Questions or Disputes

The Academic Staff Assembly is empowered to determine the methods by which election questions or disputes shall be resolved, in accordance with other provisions in the Constitution and By-laws.

UW-WHITWATER ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

ARTICLE V - VOTING

Section 1 - Eligibility to Vote in Elections and/or Referendums

In order to vote in an Academic Staff Assembly election or referendum during the academic year, an individual must hold an academic staff appointment at the time of the election or referendum. Academic staff members employed during the spring semester and holding a continuing appointment during the fall semester are eligible to vote in elections or referendums held during the summer session even if the staff member does not hold a summer session appointment. A member of the academic staff appointed to only the summer session is ineligible to vote in elections or referendums during the summer session unless that staff member holds a continuing appointment during the following fall semester.

Section 2 - Voting Process

All academic staff members eligible to vote may vote for all candidates appearing on the ballot.

Section 3 - Filling of Vacancies

If a portion of an elected term of an elected member remains to be served prior to the next regular election for the Academic Staff Assembly, the seat will be filled by an appointment by the Academic Staff Assembly, subject to a majority vote of the Assembly. This appointment will be made from a list of additional candidates who have indicated a willingness to serve. The appointee will serve until the next regularly scheduled election, subject to other provisions of the Constitution and By-laws.

When filling a vacancy, after first using the criteria above, and in accordance with other provisions in the Constitution and By-laws, the Assembly will give primary consideration to candidates who have had broad representation and service on academic staff committees.

ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS

The executive officers of the Academic Staff Assembly shall consist of a Chair, Vice-Chair, Past Chair, Communications Director, and Faculty Senate Liaison. In consideration for serving as Chair, the individual will be compensated in one of the following ways:

A. Fifty (50) percent release time from their department during their tenure as Chair. For all customary purposes (including, but not limited to, compensation, retention and promotion), the Chair shall be considered to hold the fifty (50) percent release as an addition to the remaining appointment percentage. For example, should an individual hold a fifty (50) percent release for service as Chair of the Academic Staff Assembly, for all customary purposes (including, but not limited to, compensation, retention and promotion), they shall be considered to hold a one-hundred percent appointment;

B. Be given a flat stipend. The amount of the stipend shall be determined by the Office of the Chancellor.

UW-WHITWATER ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

Section 1 - Election of Officers

The office of Vice Chair of the Assembly will be elected in the spring by the members of the Assembly as constituted and elected for the upcoming year. The Vice Chair shall be elected following general elections for a one-year (1) term which will begin July 1 of the same year. At that time, the Vice Chair of the previous year shall assume the office of Chair at that time, and the Chair of the previous year shall assume the office of Past Chair.

Section 2 - Terms and Duties of the Chair

The Chair may serve an unlimited number of separate terms. At the conclusion of each term, the current Chair will automatically transition to the office of Past Chair for a one-year (1) term. The current Vice Chair will automatically transition to the office of Chair for a one-year (1) term. If the incoming Chair has one (1) year of their two-year (2) term remaining, the vacancy created shall be filled by the individual who received the next highest number of votes within the constituency previously represented by the Chair. If there is no such individual, the Chair shall appoint an eligible individual to serve the remainder of the term, subject to the approval of a majority vote by the Academic Staff Assembly. The Chair shall preside at meetings of the Academic Staff Assembly and Academic Staff Executive Committee, shall serve as a member of the Chancellor's Cabinet, shall serve as the UW-Whitewater representative at the University of Wisconsin System Academic Staff Representatives meetings, and shall serve on other committees as appointed. The Chair shall perform other duties as prescribed within the by-laws. The Chair abstains from voting except in the case of a tied vote. The Chair is not considered an elected member of the Academic Staff Assembly, and as such, any units or groups of instructional or non-instructional staff previously represented by the chair during a term as Assembly Member or Vice Chair will be considered open seats and be eligible for an interim appointment.

Section 3 - Terms and Duties of the Vice Chair

The Vice Chair may serve an unlimited number of separate terms, but at the conclusion of each term, will automatically transition to the office of Chair for a one year (1) term. The Vice Chair shall be elected following general elections for a one-year (1) term which will begin July 1 of the same year. The Vice Chair shall solicit and organize the staffing of all academic staff assembly standing and ad hoc committees, and shall secure academic staff members to serve on University committees with the approval of the Academic Staff Assembly. The Vice Chair shall serve in the absence of the Chair, serve as the Chair of the Outreach Committee, shall serve as the Academic Staff Assembly liaison to the University Staff Council, and shall perform other duties as prescribed within the by-laws. The Vice Chair is a voting member of the Academic Staff Assembly.

Section 4 - Terms and Duties of the Past Chair

The Past Chair may serve an unlimited number of separate terms. The Chair of the previous year will automatically transition to the office of Past Chair for a one-year (1) term, barring resignation, disqualification, or a removal action of the sitting Academic Staff Assembly. The Past Chair shall serve in an advisory role to all of the Academic Staff Assembly, including the Chair and Vice Chair, and shall perform other duties as prescribed within the by-laws. The Past Chair is a non-voting member of the Academic Staff Assembly and does not hold one of the elected Academic Staff Assembly seats.

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

Section 5 - Terms and Duties of the Communications Director

The Communications Director may serve an unlimited number of separate terms. The Communications Director shall be elected in the spring by the members of the Assembly as constituted and elected for the upcoming year. The Communications Director shall be elected following general elections for a one-year (1) term which will begin July 1 of the same year. The Communications Director shall oversee the publishing of meeting announcements, meeting minutes, and any other public or internal Academic Staff Assembly communications channels. Any elected, voting member of the Academic Staff Assembly shall be eligible for election as Communications Director, and shall remain a voting member of the assembly.

Section 6 - Terms and Duties of the Faculty Senate Liaison

The Faculty Senate Liaison may serve an unlimited number of separate terms. The Faculty Senate Liaison shall be elected in the spring by the members of the Assembly as constituted and elected for the upcoming year. The Faculty Senate Liaison shall be elected following general elections for a one-year (1) term which will begin July 1 of the same year. The Faculty Senate Liaison's responsibilities shall include attending Faculty Senate meetings and providing feedback and updates between the Faculty Senate and the Academic Staff Assembly. Any elected, voting member of the Academic Staff Assembly who holds an instructional staff appointment at UW-Whitewater of at least fifty (50) percent shall be eligible for election as Faculty Senate Liaison, and shall remain a voting member of the assembly.

Section 7 - Removal from Office

The Chair, Vice Chair, and Past Chair may be removed from office upon a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Academic Staff Assembly. This removal action must be placed on the agenda at least five (5) working days prior to the next regularly scheduled Academic Staff Assembly meeting. In the event that the Vice Chair is removed, a new Vice Chair may be elected by the sitting Academic Staff Assembly. In the event that the Chair is removed, the sitting Vice Chair will transition to the office of the Chair for the remainder of the year, which will not be counted as a part of the one-year term of Chair office tenure. In the event that the Past Chair is removed, the office will remain vacant for the remainder of the year.

ARTICLE VII - ASSEMBLY MEMBER DUTIES

Section 1 - General Duties

Members of the Academic Staff Assembly have the following duties:

- A.** Represent their constituency and serve as a liaison between the Assembly and their constituency.
- B.** Attend meetings of the Academic Staff Assembly.
- C.** Serve on appropriate standing or ad hoc committees of the Academic Staff Assembly.
- D.** Serve as a liaison between the committees they represent and the Academic Staff Assembly.
- E.** Serve as representatives on University-wide committees including, but not limited to the following: Strategic Planning and Budget Committee, University Center Board, Sexual Assault Response Team, Memorial Committee, Planning Committee for 2008, and other special committees appointed by the Office of the Chancellor.

UW-WHITWATER ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

Section 2 - Absences

An Assembly member is expected to attend all meetings unless excused by advance notification to the Chair. Failure to provide advance notification to the Chair from two (2) consecutive Assembly meetings or four absences (excused or unexcused) within an academic year will constitute cause for removal from the Academic Staff Assembly by action of a majority vote of the Assembly.

Section 3 - Recall of an Assembly Member

An Assembly member may be recalled from office by a petition to the Academic Staff Assembly signed by two-thirds (2/3) of the academic staff members holding voting privileges.

ARTICLE VIII - MEETINGS

Section 1 - Regular Meetings

The Academic Staff Assembly meets on designated Wednesdays of each month, September through May, at 12:00 noon, when school is in session. Additional meetings may be called by any of the methods described in Article VIII, Section 2.

Section 2 - Special Meetings

A special meeting of the Academic Staff Assembly may be called at any time by one of three methods:

- A.** By the Chair of the Assembly; or,
- B.** By a petition of two-thirds (2/3) of the Academic Staff Assembly; or,
- C.** By a petition containing signatures of twenty (20) percent of the total membership of the academic staff eligible for voting privileges. This petition shall be submitted to the Academic Staff Assembly Chair. The date of the meeting shall be set within five (5) working days of the Chair's receipt of a valid petition as described in Article VIII, Section 2C. The special meeting shall be held within ten (10) working days of receipt of the petition.

Section 3 - Open Meetings

All meetings of the Assembly shall be open. All meetings will be announced in advance.

Section 4 - Agenda/Minutes

The agenda for Academic Staff Assembly meetings shall be established by the Executive Committee under the guidance of the Chair and shall be distributed at least two (2) working days prior to the meeting. Any member of the academic staff may submit an item to the Chair for inclusion on the agenda. Minutes of each meeting of the Assembly shall be recorded and distributed two (2) days prior to the next meeting.

ARTICLE IX - OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES

The following operational procedures are adopted for the Assembly:

- A.** A quorum of the Assembly is defined as at least fifty-one (51) percent of the voting Academic Staff Assembly.

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

B. The Assembly shall utilize Roberts' Rules of Order - Revised as its definitive source regarding parliamentary procedure.

C. All members of the Assembly may vote, aside from the Chair. The Chair abstains from voting unless a tie-breaking vote is needed. The Past Chair is considered an advisor to the Academic Staff Assembly rather than a member, and as such does not vote.

UW-WHITWATER ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

CHAPTER II: GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

ARTICLE I - STANDING COMMITTEES

There shall be eleven (11) standing committees of the Academic Staff Assembly. Those committees shall be:

- A. Awards
- B. Economic Issues
- C. Elections and Balloting
- D. Government Relations
- E. Outreach
- F. Professional Development
- G. Promotions
- H. Rewards and Recognition
- I. Review
- J. Title Appeals
- K. Titling

The Academic Staff Assembly shall be empowered to appoint all standing committee members and to confirm, on an annual basis, all appointments to other University-wide committees on which academic staff have representation. All standing committee terms expire on June 30. All binding and final changes and decisions of academic staff committees, standing and ad hoc, and recommendations forwarded to the Assembly, must be approved by a quorum of the committee's membership.

ARTICLE II - FUNCTION, MEMBERSHIP & TERMS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Unless otherwise defined within the by-laws, function and membership of the standing committees of the Academic Staff shall be as described below. Each standing committee shall have, as its liaison, a member of the Academic Staff Assembly. All standing committee appointments and two-year (2) staggered terms with a maximum of three (3) consecutive terms. Committee members are ineligible to take part in any selection/election process for an award or position for which they are nominated.

Section 1 - Awards Committee

1. Function - The Awards Committee shall solicit nominations of academic staff members for recognition in both the instructional and non-instructional areas.

2. Membership - The Awards Committee shall be composed of four (4) academic staff members: two (2) instructional and two (2) non-instructional members.

Section 2 - Economic Issues Committee

1. Function - The Economic Issues Committee provides recommendations to the Academic Staff Assembly relating to academic staff economic issues, job security, and participates in the development of the UW-Whitewater budget policies and strategic plan issues that affect academic staff.

UW-WHITWATER ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

2. Membership - The Economic Issues Committee shall be composed of six (6) academic staff members: three (3) instructional and three (3) non-instructional.

Section 3 - Elections and Balloting Committee

1. Function - The Elections and Balloting Committee solicits candidates for election to the Academic Staff Assembly, conducts the elections, and reports the results of elections to all academic staff and appropriate campus and off-campus persons. The committee conducts the voting process for the general membership of the academic staff.

2. Membership - The Elections and Balloting Committee shall be composed of three (3) members with at least one (1) instructional and one (1) non-instructional member.

Section 4 - Government Relations Committee

1. Function - The Government Relations Committee advises the Assembly and academic staff membership to governmental (local, state, or national) actions that may affect academic staff. When appropriate, the committee coordinates action with academic staff in the UW System. The committee drafts proposals related to academic staff issues for action by governmental bodies. The committee will work in conjunction with the university's legislative liaison, and with the university's representative on the UW System academic staff government relations network. Arranging regular gatherings with government officials is also a responsibility of this committee.

2. Membership - The Government Relations Committee shall be composed of four academic staff members: two (2) instructional and two (2) non-instructional members.

Section 5 - Outreach Committee

1. Function - The Outreach Committee structures and administers orientation for academic staff. The committee also facilitates academic staff participation in shared governance and the University committee and is responsible for other outreach functions.

2. Membership - The Outreach Committee shall be composed of three (3) members with at least one (1) instructional and one (1) non-instructional member. The committee is chaired by the Vice-Chair of the Assembly.

Section 6 - Professional Development Committee

1. Function - The Professional Development Committee solicits proposals by academic staff members for funding of professional development activities; establishes the criteria by which proposals are evaluated; conducts the evaluations of proposals; and makes recommendations to the Academic Staff Assembly for transmittal to the Chancellor and Provost.

2. Membership - The Professional Development Committee shall be composed of five members-no less than two (2) instructional and two (2) non-instructional members. A chair is elected from the committee membership. Committee members are ineligible to apply for professional development grants while serving on the committee. The Academic Staff Assembly liaison to this committee is separate from the committee and is responsible for convening the initial meeting of the committee and for reporting back to the Assembly on committee activity.

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

Section 7 - Promotions Committee

1. Function - The Promotions Committee structures and administers the promotions process for academic staff. The committee receives and reviews candidates' applications for promotion. Its rankings and recommendations are forwarded to the Academic Staff Assembly which then forwards the final recommendations for promotion to the Chancellor. The announcement regarding granting of promotions is made by the Office of the Chancellor.

2. Membership - The Promotions Committee shall be composed of seven (7) members with instructional academic staff status. Six (6) members function as evaluators, and one member tabulates their evaluations. A person serving on the Promotions Committee is ineligible to apply for promotion or to write a letter of reference for anyone applying for promotion.

Section 8 - Rewards and Recognition Committee

1. Function - The Rewards and Recognition Committee determines the criteria for meritorious reward, the allocation/ administration of funds, accountability of funds and timeline.

2. Membership - The Rewards and Recognition Committee shall be composed of five (5) members with non-instructional staff status.

Section 9 - Review Committee

1. Function - The Review Committee makes recommendations under Section VI-A, of the UW-Whitewater Academic Staff Personnel Policies and Procedures.

2. Membership - The Review Committee shall be composed of three (3) instructional and three (3) non-instructional staff members. In addition, the Chancellor shall appoint two (2) members each from the instructional and non-instructional areas.

Section 10 - Title Appeals Committee

1. Function - The Title Appeals Committee hears appeals from members of all three (3) categories of academic staff who believe the academic staff title assigned to their respective position by the Academic Staff Titling Committee is incorrect.

2. Membership - The Title Appeals Committee shall be composed of five (5) members appointed by the Chair of the Academic Staff Assembly with the approval of the Assembly. At least one (1), but no more than three (3) members shall be from Category B Academic Staff. No two (2) members may be from the same division (Category A) or same college (Category B).

Section 11 - Titling Committee

1. Function - The Titling Committee assigns titles and pay grades to all academic staff.

2. Membership - The Titling Committee shall consist of the Provost, or designee, as Chairperson; the Director of Human Resources and Diversity and the Director of Office of Budget, Planning and Analysis; and four (4) members of the academic staff, appointed by the Chair of the Academic Staff Assembly. At least one (1) of the appointees will be from Category B (instructional) staff and at least two (2) from Category A (non-instructional). No two (2) committee members may be from the same organizational unit or academic department (i.e. Library, Career & Leadership Development, History or Marketing). All members of this committee may exercise voting rights.

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

- 3. Jurisdiction** - The Titling Committee shall have jurisdiction over the assignment of Academic Staff titles to academic staff positions as follows:
- a. **Category A New Positions** - All new academic staff positions will be evaluated and assigned an academic staff title by the Titling Committee prior to recruitment and filling of the positions.
 - b. **Category A Vacant Positions** - If a vacant position is restructured upon becoming vacant, it will be considered a new position and will be assigned a title in accordance with the procedures for titling a new position. If, however, the responsibilities of a vacated position will remain unchanged when the position is refilled, the same title may be used without further review by the Titling Committee.
 - c. **Category A Changed Positions** - If an employee, supervisor or Dean/Division Head believes that a currently filled position's level of responsibility and/or duties have changed significantly since it was assigned its current title, an application may be made to the Titling Committee for a review of the position for possible retitling.
 - d. **Category A Distinguished Prefix** - The Titling Committee will review and evaluate the credentials of academic staff members seeking the Distinguished prefix, and will make an advisory recommendation to the Chancellor, who has sole authority for awarding the Distinguished prefix.
 - e. **Category B Prefix Designations** - The Titling Committee will review and render decisions on requests for prefix changes from Associate Lecturer to Lecturer, and from Lecturer to Senior Lecturer.
 - f. **Conversion of Classified Positions to Unclassified** - The Titling Committee will review and analyze requests for the conversion of a classified position to unclassified, and will recommend approval or denial to the Chancellor, who will either uphold or overturn the committee's recommendation. The Chancellor's decision is subject to review by UW System Administration and the Department of Employment Relations. If the position is approved for conversion, the Titling Committee will assign an Academic Staff Title in accordance with the procedures for titling a new position.
- 4. Terms** - Committee members appointed by the Assembly Chair may serve a maximum of two (2) consecutive three-year (3) terms. If appointed initially to fill the unexpired term of an Assembly member who has resigned, the individual may serve an additional two (2) consecutive three-year (3) terms, if reappointed by the Assembly Chair at the conclusion of the partial term. A person who has served a maximum term is eligible for reappointment after three (3) years.
- 5. Quorum** - Four (4) members of the committee will constitute a quorum. All decisions require a majority vote of those present and voting.
- 6. Meetings** - The Titling Committee will meet monthly unless no titling or conversion requests have been received. Ordinarily the committee will meet face-to-face but may meet virtually if a majority of the committee agrees to do so. The Chair of the committee will report its decision to the affected parties within one (1) week following the meeting.
- 7. Titling Committee Action** - The supervisor of the position will be afforded an opportunity to meet with the Committee to clarify any details about which the Committee has questions. The Provost will notify the supervisor of the committee's title decision within one (1) week after the meeting at which the position is considered.
- 8. Appeals** - Decisions of the committee on retitling requests of occupied positions may be appealed to the Title Appeals Committee as described in Section VI of this chapter. Decisions of the committee on title assignments for new and redesigned vacant positions are final.

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

9. Records Retention - The Titling Committee records shall be retained by the Provost for at least seven (7) years.

10. Criteria for Titling Decisions - The Titling Committee will utilize the Title Evaluation System for Unclassified Staff (Category A) established in March 1986 and revised in January 1989. The committee will review the Position Description Questionnaire and assign a point value to each response. The total point value establishes a salary range for the position. The committee will then assign a title which best describes the duties of the position, and also corresponds to the appropriate salary range. The assignment of an Academic Staff Title is based on the primary duties of the position, i.e., 50% or more of the duties assigned. The title decision is based upon the Guidelines and Definitions contained in University Personnel Guideline #1: Unclassified Titles.

11. Effective Date - If the position is retitled, the new title will take effect on the first of the month following the Titling Committee action.

12. Effect on Compensation - If the retitling of a position places it in a higher salary range, the incumbent will receive a salary increase of five (5) percent, or be moved to the minimum of the new salary range, whichever is greater, on the title change effective date, subject to the maximum of the range.

ARTICLE III - AD HOC COMMITTEES

The Academic Staff Assembly is empowered to appoint ad hoc committees deemed appropriate to the interests of the academic staff. The function, length of term, and membership of the committee will be determined based on the charge of the committee.

ARTICLE IV - COMMITTEE REPORTS

All committees of the Academic Staff Assembly, standing and ad hoc, are required to submit a written report to the current Assembly chair by June 1 of each year. The chairperson of each standing committee shall submit the report. The chairperson of an ad hoc committee shall submit a written report to the current Assembly chairperson within one (1) month of the completion of its assignment, or by June 1 if the assignment is on-going or carries over into the next fiscal year.

The report shall include, but need not be limited to, the following:

- A.** Name of the committee.
- B.** Membership of the committee, including names of the chairperson and Assembly liaison.
- C.** Years of service of all committee members.
- D.** Names of participants, other than committee members, where appropriate.
- E.** Timetable of committee activities to include important dates relative to that committee's activity (i.e., ballot mailing and collection dates for elections, the steps in the promotion or professional development process, when title appeals were heard, etc.).

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

F. A brief summary of the committee's activities, which may be combined with#5 above.

Committee reports, as public documents, are expected to respect the confidentiality and privacy rights of academic staff members as they pertain to promotion, review and other similar issues.

The current Assembly chairperson shall compile the committee reports and present them to UW-Whitewater's Chancellor and Provost, the Executive Vice President of the UW System, current and newly-elected Assembly members, and other appropriate parties by August 1.

UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS

CHAPTER III: BY-LAW REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

The by-laws of the Academic Staff Assembly shall be reviewed annually and amended, if necessary, by a majority vote of the Academic Staff Assembly. Amendments may be initiated by one of the following methods:

1. Upon the recommendation of the Academic Staff Assembly;
2. Upon a petition submitted to the Academic Staff Assembly by twenty (20) percent of the total membership of the academic staff eligible for voting privileges or by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of returned ballots from a general mailing. This petition shall be submitted to the Academic Staff Assembly.

**UW-WHITewater ACADEMIC STAFF BY-LAWS
BY-LAWS COMMITTEE REVIEW AND REPORT COMPLETED:**

April 12, 2021

BY-LAWS COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Terry Tumbarello (Committee Chair and Vice-Chair)

Richard Pues (Instructional staff member)

Melissa Bleiler (Non-Instructional staff member)

Brenda Johansen (Non-Instructional staff member)

ADOPTED BY ACADEMIC STAFF ASSEMBLY:

April 14, 2021

PUBLISHED:

May 5, 2021